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DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SAFETY,	)
		)
		Petitioner,	)
			)
	vs.		)		No.  09-1674 PO
			)
MARLA A. ARINZE,		)
			)
		Respondent.	)


DECISION

	Marla A. Arinze is subject to discipline because she committed the criminal offense of unauthorized access to a computer.  We cancel the hearing.  
Procedure
	On December 16, 2009, the Director of the Department of Public Safety (“the Director”) filed a complaint seeking to discipline Arinze’s peace officer license.  Arinze was served with 
a copy of the complaint and our notice of complaint/notice of hearing by certified mail on 
January 16, 2010.  Arinze filed an answer on February 12, 2010.  
	On June 9, 2010, the Director filed a motion for summary decision.  We gave Arinze until June 24, 2010, to respond to the motion, but she did not respond.  
	Our Regulation 1 CSR 15-3.446(5)(A) provides:  
The commission may grant a motion for summary decision if a party establishes facts that entitle any party to a favorable decision and no party genuinely disputes such facts. 


The Director moves for summary decision because Arinze’s answer admits the essential allegations set forth in the complaint.  Based on Arinze’s admission of the allegations of the complaint, we make the following findings of fact.  
Findings of Fact
1. Arinze is licensed as a peace officer.  Her license was current and active at all relevant times. 
2. On or about November 28, 2006, in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Missouri, Arinze knowingly and with intent to defraud accessed REJIS and obtained information of value regarding outstanding arrest warrants for immigration violations in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1030(a).  
3. On or about March 2, 2009, in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Missouri, Arinze pled guilty to unauthorized access to a protected computer and was placed on supervised probation for two years.  
Conclusions of Law
	We have jurisdiction to hear this complaint.[footnoteRef:1]  The Director has the burden of proving that the licensee has committed an act for which the law allows discipline.[footnoteRef:2] [1: Section 590.080.2.  Statutory references are to RSMo Supp. 2009 unless otherwise noted.]  [2: Missouri Real Estate Comm’n v. Berger, 764 S.W.2d 706, 711 (Mo. App., E.D. 1989).  ] 

	The Director argues that there is cause for discipline under § 590.080.1, which states:
The director shall have cause to discipline any peace officer licensee who:

*   *   *

(2) Has committed any criminal offense, whether or not a criminal charge has been filed[.]

The Director argues that Arinze committed the crime of unauthorized access to a protected computer in violation of 18 USC § 1030(a)(2) and (4):  



(a) Whoever—

*   *   * 

(2) intentionally accesses a computer without authorization or exceeds authorized access, and thereby obtains—

*   *   * 

(B) information from any department or agency of the United States; or

(C) information from any protected computer; 

*   *   * 

(4) knowingly and with intent to defraud, accesses a protected computer without authorization, or exceeds authorized access, and by means of such conduct furthers the intended fraud and obtains anything of value, unless the object of the fraud and the thing obtained consists only of the use of the computer and the value of such use is not more than $5,000 in any 1-year period[.]

	A guilty plea constitutes a declaration against interest, which the defendant may explain away.[footnoteRef:3]  Arinze admits that she pled guilty to unauthorized access to a protected computer and that she knowingly and with the intent to defraud accessed REJIS and obtained information of value regarding outstanding arrest warrants for immigration violations.  This conduct violated 18 USC § 1030(a)(2), if not (a)(4).  There is cause for discipline under § 590.080.1(2). [3: Nichols v. Blake, 418 S.W.2d 188, 190 (Mo. 1967).] 

	Arinze also admits the allegation in the complaint that her conduct violated 
§ 576.050, which provides:
1.  A public servant commits the crime of misuse of official information if, in contemplation of official action by himself or herself or by a governmental unit with which he or she is associated, or in reliance on information to which he or she has access in his or her official capacity and which has not been made public, he or she knowingly: 




(1) Acquires a pecuniary interest in any property, transaction, or enterprise which may be affected by such information or official action; or

(2) Speculates or wagers on the basis of such information or official action; or

(3) Aids, advises or encourages another to do any of the foregoing with purpose of conferring a pecuniary benefit on any person.  

*   *   *

3.  Misuse of official information is a class A misdemeanor.  

The General Assembly and the courts have instructed us that we must:[footnoteRef:4] [4: Kennedy v. Missouri Real Estate Comm'n, 762 S.W.2d 454, 456 -457 (Mo. App., E.D. 1988).  ] 

make an independent assessment of the facts to determine whether cause for disciplining a licensee exists. . . .  But this impartiality would be compromised if the determination of cause was not a separately and independently arrived at determination by the Hearing Commission. 

We therefore independently apply the law to the facts.  The allegations in the complaint, which Arinze admits, do not specifically show that Arinze acted with any pecuniary interest or that she acted with the purpose of conferring a pecuniary benefit on any other person.  The complaint asserts that she obtained information “of value,” but does not explain how this information was to be used.  The admitted allegations do not show that Arinze committed the criminal offense of misuse of official information in violation of § 576.050.  
Summary
	We find cause to discipline Arinze’s peace officer license under § 590.080.1(2) for violation of 18 USC § 1030.  We cancel the hearing.    
	SO ORDERED on July 7, 2010.

		________________________________
		NIMROD T. CHAPEL, JR. 
		Commissioner
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